
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, April 4, 2022 7:00 PM 

Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

Mayor:    Matt Lein
Councilmember:     Carol Szaroletta 
Councilmember:     Sarah Bruss 
Councilmember:     Rachel Lenzen 
Councilmember:     Nathan Kells 

NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF DISCUSSION. TO 
ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 7:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 
4. VISITOR’S PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS, CORRESPONDENCE 
5. ADOPT CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed below are considered routine and non-controversial by the Council. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Councilmember, Staff or 
Citizen. If removed, the item will be discussed at the end of the regular agenda. 

a. March 21, 2022 City Council Minutes 
b. April 4, 2022 Check Summary Register 
c. March 29, 2022 Payroll Summary 
d. STARS ELA Subrecipient Agreement 
e. Cologne Lions Gambling Permit App 



f. Pounders and Inn Town Annual Liquor License Renewal App 
g. Resolution 22-08 Advertising for Summer Help 

 
 

6. OLD COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

7. NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 
i. Transportation Study Update 

8. BOARD REPORTS 
a. STARS ELA Preliminary & Final Plat Planning Commission 

Update 
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS     
10. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
11.  ADJOURN 

 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS/MEETINGS 
April 18 Monday  7:00PM City Council Meeting 
May 2  Monday  6:00PM Planning Commission Meeting 
May 2  Monday  7:00PM City Council Meeting 
 
 



 

City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday, March 21, 2022 7:00 PM 

Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

Mayor:    Matt Lein
Councilmember:     Carol Szaroletta 
Councilmember:     Sarah Bruss 
Councilmember:     Rachel Lenzen 
Councilmember:     Nathan Kells 

NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF DISCUSSION. TO 
ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 7:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
Mayor Lein called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Councilmembers Kells, Lenzen and 
Szaroletta were present.  Also present were City Administrator Jesse Dickson and City 
Clerk Michelle Morrison.  Councilmember Bruss was absent.   

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

Motion by Councilmember Kells to adopt the agenda, second by Councilmember 
Lenzen.  Motion carried unanimously. 

4. VISITOR’S PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS, CORRESPONDENCE 
a. Cologne Community of Belonging 

Gracia Hegener came before the Council to provide an update on the Community of 
Belonging survey and steps that are being taken after reviewing the survey results.  



Patrick Steig, from Carver County Public Health reviewed the results and highlighted the 
22% response rate.  Gracia explained that the committee is now focusing on specific 
objectives that will guide the strategy development. 
 

5. ADOPT CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed below are considered routine and non-controversial by the Council. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Councilmember, Staff or 
Citizen. If removed, the item will be discussed at the end of the regular agenda. 

 

a. March 7, 2022 City Council Minutes 
b. March 21, 2022 Check Summary Register 
c. March 15, 2022 Payroll Summary 
d. Resolution 22-06 Accepting Donation 
e. On Sale Liquor License App Cologne Corral 
f. Off Sale Liquor License App Cologne Corral 
g. Jostan Services Updated Service Contract 
h. CCC Compressor Replacement Proposal 

 
Motion by Councilmember Kells to adopt the consent agenda, second by 
Councilmember Lenzen.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. OLD COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

7. NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 
i. Winkler Crossing 4th Addition Final Plat 

1. Bolton and Menk Staff Comments 
2. Collaborative Planning Staff Comment Memo 
3. Collaborative Planning Staff Report 
4. Resolution 22-07 Approving Winkler 4th Final Plat 
5. Winkler 4th Developer’s Agreement 

City Planner Cindy Nash reviewed comments made regarding the Winkler 4th Final Plat 
and additional comments she has received since the memo’s were drafted.  Motion by 
Councilmember Kells to approve Resolution 22-07 Approving Winkler 4th Final Plat 
subject to the changes noted in the comment memos, second by Councilmember 
Lenzen.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Nash continued to review the Winkler 4th Developer’s Agreement and comments 
received from the City Engineer and City Attorney.  Motion by Councilmember Kells to 
approve the Winkler 4th Developer’s Agreement subject to the City Engineer and 
Attorney comments, second by Councilmember Lenzen.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. BOARD REPORTS 
a. February Sheriff’s Report 



9. ANNOUNCEMENTS     
Councilmember Kells provided an update on grants he has applied for and various 
projects he is working on.   
 

10. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
11.  ADJOURN 

Motion by Councilmember Szaroletta to adjourn at 7:35PM, second by Councilmember 
Lenzen.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 

 

 

_________________________   _______________________ 
Michelle M Morrison     Matt Lein 

City Clerk      Mayor 

 



*Check Summary Register©

CITY OF COLOGNE 04/01/22 11:13 AM
Page 1

Batch: 040422CR

Name Check Date Check Amt

10100   Checking
27094 ANDYS LAWN & SNOW 4/4/2022 $241.59 Monthly Lawn Service - April
27095 CARVER COUNTY 4/4/2022 $160.00 Fiber Optic Connection
27096 CENTERPOINT 4/4/2022 $1,730.17 107 John Ave
27097 CITY OF SHAKOPEE 4/4/2022 $2,100.00 Annual Drug Task Force Dues
27098 COLLABORATIVE PLANNING, LL 4/4/2022 $972.00 Misc. Planning
27099 DWK CLEAN WATER SERVICES, 4/4/2022 $1,080.00 WWTP Monthly Water Testing - March
27100 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. 4/4/2022 $37.80 Publish Public Hearing April 4 Prelim Plat
27101 MARK EGGERS 4/4/2022 $458.43 Hotel and 2 meals for Class B Water Testing
27102 EMERGENCY TECHNICAL DECO 4/4/2022 $1,010.95 CFD Gear Repairs
27103 HAWKINS, INC 4/4/2022 $6,738.44 Chemicals
27104 PAULA HELD 4/4/2022 $50.00 Deposit Refund
27105 JOSTAN SERVICES, INC. 4/4/2022 $693.03 CCC Cleaning - March
27106 LORI KASEL 4/4/2022 $10.68 Treats for Seniors
27107 JOSHUA KERWOOD 4/4/2022 $114.43 Full Refund
27108 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INSURAN 4/4/2022 $20,679.00 Workers Comp Insurance
27109 LOFFLER-131511 4/4/2022 $48.27 Monthly Copier Lease March
27110 MELCHERT, HUBERT,SJODIN, PL 4/4/2022 $2,943.60 Misc legal
27111 METRO WEST INSPECTION SER 4/4/2022 $2,460.03 Permits Finaled - March
27112 METRO FIBERNET 4/4/2022 $173.77 Phones
27113 AMIE MEULENERS 4/4/2022 $100.00 Deposit Refund
27114 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHE 4/4/2022 $487.03 Truck Wash Supplies
27115 MN DEPT OF HEALTH 4/4/2022 $23.00 M. Eggers Class B Certification Fee
27116 MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPER 4/4/2022 $362.91 2140 N Village Parkway
27117 MN VALLEY TESTING LABS 4/4/2022 $447.00 Water Analysis
27118 MICHELLE MORRISON 4/4/2022 $98.65 Adobe Monthly Subscription
27119 NCPERS Group Life Ins 4/4/2022 $96.00 Employee Life Insurance - April
27120 NORTHERN SAFETY TECHNOLO 4/4/2022 $170.78 PW Supplies
27121 POST OFFICE 4/4/2022 $130.00 Annual Box Rental
27122 QUALITY FLOW SYSTEMS, INC 4/4/2022 $287.50 Service Call bad check valve
27123 SECURITY CARD MEMBER SERV 4/4/2022 $1,574.47 Gym Wipes
27124 TOWN & COUNTRY GLASS INC. 4/4/2022 $95.00 Repairs to Front Entry Door Lock
27125 USA BLUE BOOK 4/4/2022 $306.69 Full Disclosure Signs
27126 WACONIA CHOIR BOOSTERS 4/4/2022 $100.00 Deposit Refund
27127 WATER CONSERVATION SERVIC 4/4/2022 $561.96 Water Leak Detection Services
27128 XCEL ENERGY 4/4/2022 $11,214.29 701 Lake St W / PW Maintenance Bldg

Total Checks $57,757.47

FILTER: (([Act Year]='2022' and [period] in (4))) and (Source in ('040422CR'))

____________________________________________                     _________________________

Clerk Treasurer                                                                                                Date



Batch: 040422CR

Page 1
04/01/22 11:14 AMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

10100   Checking
27094 04/04/22 ANDYS LAWN & SNOW

$241.59 Monthly Lawn Service - AprilContractual Services 14803E 101-41400-312
$241.59Total

27095 04/04/22 CARVER COUNTY
$40.00 Fiber Optic ConnectionCommunications (GENER 3018E 101-43100-320
$40.00 Fiber Optic ConnectionCommunications (GENER 3018E 101-42210-320
$40.00 Fiber Optic ConnectionCommunications (GENER 3018E 101-45100-320
$40.00 Fiber Optic ConnectionCommunications (GENER 3018E 601-49400-320

$160.00Total

27096 04/04/22 CENTERPOINT
$379.90 107 John AveGas UtilitiesE 101-45200-383
$16.80 306 PlayhouseGas UtilitiesE 101-43100-383

$712.25 304 Louis StGas UtilitiesE 101-43100-383
$621.22 110 Louis StGas UtilitiesE 101-42210-383

$0.00 105 Benton StGas UtilitiesE 602-49470-383
$1,730.17Total

27097 04/04/22 CITY OF SHAKOPEE
$2,100.00 Annual Drug Task Force DuesOther Professional Servic 10375E 101-42110-310
$2,100.00Total

27098 04/04/22 COLLABORATIVE PLANNING, LLC
$378.00 Misc. PlanningOther Professional Servic 062E 101-41910-310
$540.00 Winkler Crossing 4th AdditionOther Professional Servic 063E 101-41910-310
$54.00 STARS ELCOther Professional Servic 064E 101-41910-310

$972.00Total

27099 04/04/22 DWK CLEAN WATER SERVICES, LLC
$1,080.00 WWTP Monthly Water Testing - MarchContractual Services 0322E 602-49450-312
$1,080.00Total

27100 04/04/22 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.
$37.80 Publish Public Hearing April 4 Prelim PlatPrint/Publications (GENE 882233E 101-41400-350
$37.80Total

27101 04/04/22 MARK EGGERS
$373.44 Hotel and 2 meals for Class B Water TestingTravel/Education ExpenseE 101-43100-331
$84.99 Boot ReimbursementUniformsE 101-43100-417

$458.43Total

27102 04/04/22 EMERGENCY TECHNICAL DECON
$1,010.95 CFD Gear RepairsContractual Services 197E 101-42230-312
$1,010.95Total

27103 04/04/22 HAWKINS, INC
$6,115.04 ChemicalsChemicals and Chem Pro 6144910E 602-49450-216

$623.40 ChemicalsChemicals and Chem Pro 6144912E 601-49400-216



Batch: 040422CR

Page 2
04/01/22 11:14 AMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$6,738.44Total

27104 04/04/22 PAULA HELD
$50.00 Deposit RefundDepositsG 101-22000
$50.00Total

27105 04/04/22 JOSTAN SERVICES, INC.
$693.03 CCC Cleaning - MarchRepairs/Maint Buildings 8249E 101-45100-401
$693.03Total

27106 04/04/22 LORI KASEL
$10.68 Treats for SeniorsMiscellaneous (GENERALE 101-46200-430
$10.68Total

27107 04/04/22 JOSHUA KERWOOD
$50.00 Full RefundDepositsG 101-22000
$4.13 Full RefundSales Tax PayableG 101-20300
$0.30 Full RefundSales Tax Payable - TransG 101-20301

$60.00 Full RefundGym Fees/RentalsR 101-00000-34793
$114.43Total

27108 04/04/22 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INSURANCE
$4,549.38 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 101-43100-151
$1,447.53 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 101-45200-151
$3,412.04 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 602-49450-151
$3,101.85 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 601-49400-151
$1,137.34 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 101-41400-151
$7,030.86 Workers Comp InsuranceWorker s Comp Insurance WC 1002630E 101-42200-151

$20,679.00Total

27109 04/04/22 LOFFLER-131511
$48.27 Monthly Copier Lease MarchRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 3982484E 101-41400-404
$48.27Total

27110 04/04/22 MELCHERT, HUBERT,SJODIN, PLLP
$421.20 Data PracticesLegal Fees 160898E 101-41600-304
$608.40 STARS ELA GrantLegal Fees 160899E 101-41600-304
$873.60 Misc legalLegal Fees 160900E 101-41600-304
$927.90 Winkler Crossing 4th AddnLegal Fees 160901E 101-41600-304
$112.50 STARS ELA DevelopmentLegal Fees 160902E 101-41600-304

$2,943.60Total

27111 04/04/22 METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVICES
$2,460.03 Permits Finaled - MarchOther Professional Servic 3223E 101-42400-310
$2,460.03Total

27112 04/04/22 METRO FIBERNET
$173.77 PhonesCommunications (GENERE 101-43100-320
$173.77Total

27113 04/04/22 AMIE MEULENERS



Batch: 040422CR

Page 3
04/01/22 11:14 AMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$100.00 Deposit RefundDepositsG 101-22000
$100.00Total

27114 04/04/22 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL
$194.37 PW SuppliesRepairs/Maint Buildings 0756786E 101-43100-401
$292.66 Truck Wash SuppliesRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 0757680E 101-43100-404
$487.03Total

27115 04/04/22 MN DEPT OF HEALTH
$23.00 M. Eggers Class B Certification FeeTraining and InstructionE 601-49400-208
$23.00Total

27116 04/04/22 MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
$57.60 2140 N Village ParkwayElectric UtilitiesE 602-49470-381
$43.11 2043 Village Parkway LightElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381

$262.20 Street Light AccountElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381
$362.91Total

27117 04/04/22 MN VALLEY TESTING LABS
$149.00 Water AnalysisAnalysis 1134061E 602-49450-311
$149.00 Water AnalysisAnalysis 1134830E 602-49450-311
$149.00 Water AnalysisAnalysis 1135812E 602-49450-311
$447.00Total

27118 04/04/22 MICHELLE MORRISON
$54.73 Adobe Monthly SubscriptionComputer Software/HardwE 101-41400-207
$19.43 Franklin Printing Nameplate for Planning and 

Zoning
Office Supplies (GENERAE 101-41400-200

$24.49 Amazon 3 ring binders and dividersOffice Supplies (GENERAE 101-41400-200
$98.65Total

27119 04/04/22 NCPERS Group Life Ins
$48.00 Employee Life Insurance - AprilEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 39700004202E 101-41400-130
$16.00 Employee Life Insurance - AprilEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 39700004202E 601-49400-130
$16.00 Employee Life Insurance - AprilEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 39700004202E 602-49450-130
$16.00 Employee Life Insurance - AprilEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 39700004202E 101-43100-130
$96.00Total

27120 04/04/22 NORTHERN SAFETY TECHNOLOGY INC
$170.78 PW SuppliesRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 53776E 101-43100-404
$170.78Total

27121 04/04/22 POST OFFICE
$130.00 Annual Box RentalPostageE 101-41400-322
$130.00Total

27122 04/04/22 QUALITY FLOW SYSTEMS, INC
$287.50 Service Call bad check valveRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 42647E 602-49450-404
$287.50Total

27123 04/04/22 SECURITY CARD MEMBER SERVICE
$110.00 Gym WipesOperating Supplies (GENE 101-45100-210



Batch: 040422CR

Page 4
04/01/22 11:14 AMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$615.00 J. Dickson MCMA ConferenceTravel/Education ExpenseE 101-41400-331
$30.55 PW Label makerOffice Supplies (GENERAE 101-43100-200

$303.35 FlagsMiscellaneous (GENERALE 101-45200-430
$174.32 PW suppliesRepairs/Maint BuildingsE 101-43100-401
$341.25 M. Egger Hotel for testingTravel/Education ExpenseE 101-43100-331

$1,574.47Total

27124 04/04/22 TOWN & COUNTRY GLASS INC.
$95.00 Repairs to Front Entry Door LockRepairs/Maint Buildings 12824E 101-45100-401
$95.00Total

27125 04/04/22 USA BLUE BOOK
$306.69 Full Disclosure SignsOperating Supplies (GEN 901802E 602-49450-210
$306.69Total

27126 04/04/22 WACONIA CHOIR BOOSTERS
$100.00 Deposit RefundDepositsG 101-22000
$100.00Total

27127 04/04/22 WATER CONSERVATION SERVICE, IN
$561.96 Water Leak Detection ServicesContractual ServicesE 601-49400-312
$561.96Total

27128 04/04/22 XCEL ENERGY
$152.60 701 Lake St W / PW Maintenance BldgElectric UtilitiesE 101-41940-381
$528.07 Louis HallElectric UtilitiesE 101-42210-381
$405.35 Storage Shed / PW FacilityElectric UtilitiesE 101-43100-381

$1,596.35 1108 Village Pkwy Street Light / Street LightElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381
$109.71 3002 Gold Nuggett Dr / Lions Park Tennis CourtsElectric UtilitiesE 101-45200-381

($178.84) Well #3 / Water Tower and WellsElectric UtilitiesE 601-49400-381
$5,574.54 WWTPElectric UtilitiesE 602-49450-381

$67.78 115 Paul Ave S / Lift StationsElectric UtilitiesE 602-49470-381
$0.00 Cologne Community CenterElectric UtilitiesE 101-45100-381

$2,958.73  2224 NaplesElectric UtilitiesE 601-49400-381
$11,214.29Total

10100   Checking $57,757.47

____________________________________________                     _________________________

Clerk Treasurer                                                                                                Date

Fund Summary
10100  Checking
101 GENERAL FUND $33,247.18
601 WATER FUND $7,146.10
602 SEWER FUND $17,364.19

$57,757.47



Em
pl

oy
ee

 
EF

T
11

,7
51

.7
1

$ 
   

  
M

ar
ch

 2
9,

 2
02

2 
Pa

yr
ol

l
IR

S
92

1E
EF

T
4,

39
9.

11
$ 

   
   

 
M

ar
ch

 2
9,

 2
02

2 
Pa

yr
ol

l
M

N
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f R

ev
en

u e
92

2E
EF

T
76

2.
78

$ 
   

   
   

 
M

ar
ch

 2
9,

 2
02

2 
Pa

yr
ol

l
PE

R
A

92
3E

EF
T

2,
42

4.
30

$ 
   

   
 

M
ar

ch
 2

9,
 2

02
2 

Pa
yr

ol
l

 
T

ot
al

19
,3

37
.9

0
$ 

   
  

C
ity

 o
f C

ol
og

ne
 P

ay
ro

ll
29

-M
ar

-2
2



1 
 

COMMUNITY GROWTH PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVE GRANT PROGRAM 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR 

STARS EARLY LEARNING ACADEMY 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Cologne, a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (“Recipient”) and STARS Early 
Learning Academy, a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (“Subrecipient”). 

WHEREAS, Recipient applied for a Community Growth Partnership Initiative (“CGPI”) 
grant from the Carver County Community Development Agency (the “Agency” or the “CCCDA”) 
to assist Subrecipient with site work, utilities, landscaping, parking, and sidewalk/trail 
improvements in connection with development of the vacant lot adjacent to City Hall located in 
Cologne at Village Market Drive, as shown in the attached Exhibit A (“Project”); 

WHEREAS, Recipient has received a CGPI grant in the amount of One Hundred 
Thousand dollars ($100,000) (the “Grant Funds”) to carry out municipal development efforts in 
cooperation with Subrecipient in accordance with the Community Development Grant Agreement 
(“CDGA”) attached as Exhibit B, and to reimburse Subrecipient for funds expended on the Project;  

WHEREAS, the Grant Funds are being distributed with the understanding that there is a 
match of the total Grant Funds based upon the expenditure by Subrecipient of two dollars ($2.00) 
of funds for each one dollar ($1.00) of Grant Funds (“Matching Funds”); 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the Grand Funds, Subrecipient shall make best efforts to 
add at least fourteen (14) full-time equivalent positions in connection with the Project earning a 
minimum of Seventeen Dollars ($17.00) per hour; and 

WHEREAS, to receive the Grant Funds, Subrecipient agrees to the requirements and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement do hereby agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1.1 Subrecipient shall be reimbursed from the Grant Funds to perform the Project, subject 
to the requirements of this Agreement and the requirements set forth in the CDGA. 

1.2 Subrecipient shall take all necessary actions, not only to comply with the requirements 
of the CDGA, but to comply with any requests by Recipient with respect to its 
compliance with that agreement, it being understood that Recipient is responsible to 
the Agency for ensuring compliance with such requirements, which includes, but is not 
limited to, providing the Recipient with copies of all surveys, environmental 
assessments, engineering reports, and wetland delineation information.  Subrecipient 
also will promptly notify Recipient of any changes in the scope or character of the 
Project. 



2 
 

1.3 At the request of Recipient, on a form to be provided, Subrecipient shall submit a 
schedule, corresponding to the terms of this Agreement, showing milestones for Project 
implementation and timely expenditure of funds.  Subrecipient shall promptly provide 
other information as requested to assure compliance with Agency timeliness 
requirements and reporting requirements. 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is effective on the date that all parties who are signatories have executed the 
Agreement (the “Effective Date”).  This Agreement automatically terminates when the CDGA 
terminates or at such time the Project contemplated in this Agreement is satisfactorily 
completed before that date (the “Termination Date”).  Upon expiration, cancelation, or 
termination of this Agreement, Recipient’s obligation to distribute unexpended CGPI Grant 
Funds to Subrecipient shall terminate. 

3. THIRD PARTY AGREEMENTS 

Subrecipient shall notify Recipient in writing of the vendor or vendors retained to perform the 
services shown on Exhibit A, whether in whole or in part, and the scope of the vendor’s 
involvement with the Project.  Recipient shall have the right to object to any vendor and 
Subrecipient shall not allow any such vendor to perform any services related to the Project.  
Subrecipient shall not otherwise assign, transfer, or pledge this Agreement (nor the services to 
be performed hereunder), whether in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of 
Recipient and the Agency. 

4. AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT 

Any material alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of provisions of this Agreement 
shall only be valid when reduced to writing as an amendment to this Agreement and signed, 
approved, and properly executed by the authorized representatives of the parties.  An exception 
to this process will be in amending Exhibit B to this Agreement.  Exhibit B shall be deemed 
amended when the parties to that certain agreement in Exhibit B execute any amendments 
thereto. 

5. PAYMENT OF GRANT FUNDS 

5.1 Upon application to Recipient by Subrecipient, Recipient agrees to provide 
Subrecipient with Grant Funds, not to exceed One Hundred Thousand dollars 
($100,000), to enable Subrecipient to carry out the Project as described in Exhibit A.  
Disbursement of the Grant Funds is dependent upon reimbursement of Grant Funds to 
Recipient under Section 1.06 of the CDGA. 

5.2 It is understood that Recipient shall be held accountable to the Agency for the lawful 
expenditure of Grant Funds distributed under this Agreement.  Recipient shall therefore 
make no payment of Grant Funds to Subrecipient for the Project prior to having 
received proper documentation from Subrecipient for the expenses incurred as well as 
copies of all documents and records needed to ensure that Subrecipient has complied 
with all applicable regulations and requirements.  For purposes of this Agreement, 



3 
 

“proper documentation” is such that allows for the completion of the Agency 
Reimbursement Request form attached as Exhibit C, which includes but is not limited 
to the following: 

a. Bills and invoices from third parties for which Subrecipient seeks reimbursement; 
and 

b. Documentation showing in sufficient detail that Subrecipient has provided 
Matching Funds of amount and kind sufficient to satisfy the applicable 
requirements set forth in the CDGA. 

6. JOB CREATION 

Subrecipient shall use best efforts to add a minimum of fourteen (14) new full-time equivalent 
positions in connection with the Project with each position earning at least Seventeen Dollars 
($17.00) per hour, within twelve (12) months of the first disbursement of Grant Funds from 
Recipient to Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient does not exert best efforts to create or retain this 
minimum number of full-time equivalent positions within twelve (12) months of the first 
disbursement, Recipient may declare Subrecipient in default of this Agreement by giving 
Subrecipient written notice of default.  If such notice of default is given: i) Subrecipient shall 
pay back to Recipient, within thirty (30) days of the date of the notice, all CGPI Grant Funds 
disbursed to Subrecipient; and ii) Recipient’s obligation to disburse any further CGPI Grant 
Funds shall automatically terminate.  The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the 
expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

7. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

7.1 Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Recipient and the Agency, 
their elected officials, officers, agents, volunteers, and employees from and against all 
costs, expenses, claims, suits, or judgements arising from any injury, loss, or damage 
sustained by any person or corporation, including employees of Subrecipient, its 
vendors, agents, and subcontractors and property of Subrecipient, which are caused by 
or sustained in connection with the tasks carried out by Subrecipient or its vendors, 
agents, or subcontractors in connection with the Project or under this Agreement.  The 
provisions of this Section 7.1 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination 
of this Agreement. 

7.2 In order to protect Recipient and the Agency from liability and to effectuate the 
indemnification provisions hereinabove, Subrecipient shall secure, maintain, and pay 
for insurance from an insurance company in form and content as will, in Recipient’s 
reasonable discretion, protect against claims or losses which may arise out of the 
operations of Subrecipient or out of the operations of any agent, vendor, subcontractor 
or anyone employed by either Subrecipient or any subcontractor or by anyone for 
whose acts Subrecipient or any sub-contractor may be liable for the Project and under 
this Agreement (“Subrecipient Certificate of Insurance”).  The Subrecipient Certificate 
of Insurance shall include, but not be limited to, minimum coverages and limits of 



4 
 

liability specified below, or required by law.  Unless otherwise specifically waived in 
writing signed by Recipient, the required insurance shall not be less than the following: 

a. Public Liability, Personal Injury, and Property Damage:  $1,500,000.00 for each 
occurrence. 

b. Worker’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance:  Shall be 
secured and maintained as required by the State of Minnesota. 

c. Automobile and Truck Public Liability, Personal Injury and Property Damage, 
Including Owned and Non-Owned Vehicles:  $1,500,000.00 for each occurrence. 

d. Insurance:  Before commencement of the work, Subrecipient shall submit written 
evidence that it has obtained, for the period of this Agreement, builder’s “all-risk” 
completed value insurance coverage, excluding flood insurance, upon the Project 
in its entirety including completed work and work in progress.  Such insurance shall 
include as additional named insureds (i) Recipient, (ii) Recipient’s officers, 
employees, and agents, and (iii) any other persons with an insurable interest 
designated by Recipient as an additional named insured.  Such insurance may have 
a deductible clause, but the amount of the deductible shall not exceed $5,000.00. 

An umbrella or excess policy over primary liability coverages is an acceptable 
method to provide the required insurance limits.  The above subparagraphs 
establish minimum insurance requirements.  It is the sole responsibility of 
Subrecipient to determine the need for and to procure additional insurance that may 
be needed in connection with the construction of the Project. 

e. Each Subrecipient Certificate of Insurance shall contain a clause providing that the 
related policy shall not be cancelled by the insurance company without a minimum 
of thirty (30) days’ written notice to Recipient of intention to cancel. 

f. A copy of the Subrecipient Certificate of Insurance which evidences compliance 
with this paragraph must be filed with Recipient prior to the start of the Project.   

7.3 If the Project is damaged or destroyed and Subrecipient elects not to complete the 
Project, Subrecipient shall pay back to Recipient, within thirty (30) days of the date of 
such damage or destruction, all CGPI Grant Funds disbursed to Subrecipient. 

7.4 This section shall in no way be intended by the parties hereto as a waiver of the liability 
limits specified in Minnesota Statutes Section 466.04, as amended.  The provisions of 
this Section 7.4 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this 
Agreement. 

8. DATA PRIVACY 

Subrecipient agrees to abide by the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices 
Act (Minn. Stat. § 13.01 et seq) and all other applicable state and federal laws, rules, and 
regulations relating to data privacy or confidentiality.  Subrecipient agrees to defend, 



5 
 

indemnify, and hold Recipient and the Agency and their respective elected officials, officers, 
agents, volunteers, and employees harmless from any claims resulting from Subrecipient’s 
unlawful disclosure or use (or both) of such protected data.  The provisions of this Section 8 
shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

9. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION 

9.1 Subrecipient’s failure to materially comply with any term of this Agreement or its 
failure to administer the work so as to endanger the performance of this Agreement 
shall constitute noncompliance and default, which may only be excused in writing by 
the Recipient.  This Section 9.1 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination 
of this Agreement. 

9.2 Any representation or warranty made by Subrecipient in association with this 
Agreement or the CDGA, or any other document referred to in such documents, or any 
financial statement certificate, or any report furnished pursuant to this Agreement, or 
any representation or warranty made in order to induce Recipient or the Agency to 
approve the CGPI grant, the amount of Grant Funds, or the disbursement of Grant 
Funds which proves to be untrue in any material respect or materially misleading at the 
time such representation or warranty was made, shall constitute a default of this 
Agreement.  Unless Subrecipient’s default is excused by Recipient in writing, Recipient 
may immediately cancel this Agreement in its entirety.  This Section 9.2 shall survive 
the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

9.3 Recipient’s failure to insist upon strict performance of any provision or to exercise any 
right under this Agreement shall not be deemed a relinquishment or waiver of the same.  
Such consent shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment throughout the 
entire term of the Agreement. 

9.4 This Agreement may be cancelled with or without cause by either party upon thirty 
(30) days’ written notice.  If canceled by Subrecipient then all Grant Funds must be 
returned to Recipient within fifteen (15) days of the date of cancelation. 

9.5 Grant Funds allocated to Subrecipient under this Agreement may not be obligated or 
expended by Subrecipient following the date of expiration, cancelation, or termination 
of this Agreement and shall automatically revert to Recipient for release to CCCDA.  
The provisions of this Section 9.5 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or 
termination of this Agreement. 

9.6 Recipient may immediately cancel this Agreement in its entirety as a result of 
Subrecipient’s noncompliance or default under this Agreement and may seek from 
Subrecipient the repayment of any or all Grant Funds, which shall be returned by 
Subrecipient within thirty (30) days of Recipient’s request.   

9.7 Subrecipient shall reimburse Recipient for all costs, expenses, and fees, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and accountant’s fees, incurred as a result of Subrecipient’s 
default of this Agreement, in seeking repayment or reversion of the Grant Funds, or 
auditing Subrecipient’s records related to the CGPI Grant Funds and this Agreement. 



6 
 

10. REVERSION OF ASSETS 

Upon expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to 
Recipient any unexpended Grant Funds on hand or in accounts receivable attributable to the 
use of Grant Funds.  The provisions of this Section 10 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, 
or termination of this Agreement. 

11. IMPLEMENTATION 

Subrecipient shall be responsible for procurement of all supplies, equipment, services, and 
construction necessary for implementation of the Project. 

12. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

12.1 During the performance of this Agreement, Subrecipient agrees to the following:  In 
accordance with the Minnesota Human Rights Act, no person shall be excluded from 
full employment rights or participation in, or the benefits of, any program, service, or 
activity on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, age, sex, disability, gender, 
gender-identity, marital status, sexual orientation, public assistance status, or national 
origin; and no person who is protected by applicable federal or state laws against 
discrimination shall be otherwise subjected to discrimination. 

12.2 Subrecipient will furnish all information and reports required to comply with all 
applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to discrimination 
and equal opportunity.  The provisions of this Section 12.2 shall survive the expiration, 
cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

13. RECORDKEEPING 

Subrecipient shall maintain records of the receipt and expenditure of all Grant Funds.  Such 
accounts and records shall be kept and maintained by Subrecipient for a period of six (6) years 
following the Termination Date.  All records shall be made immediately available upon request 
of Recipient for inspection(s) and audit(s) by Recipient or its representatives.  If a financial 
audit determines that Subrecipient has improperly expended Grant Funds, resulting in the 
Agency disallowing such expenditures, Recipient reserves the right to recover from 
Subrecipient such disallowed expenditures from non-CGPI Grant Fund sources.  The 
provisions of this Section 13 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this 
Agreement. 

14. ACCESS TO RECORDS 

Recipient shall have authority to review any and all procedures and all materials, notices, 
documents, and related items prepared by Subrecipient in implementation of this Agreement, 
and Subrecipient agrees to provide all information required by any person authorized by 
Recipient to request such information from Subrecipient for the purpose of reviewing the same.  
The provisions of this Section 14 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of 
this Agreement. 



7 
 

15. TIME 

Time is of the essence of the performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The 
provisions of this Section 15 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this 
Agreement. 

16. NOTICE 

Reimbursement requests, written reports, correspondence, and notices of any other kind 
submitted to Recipient pursuant to this Agreement shall be directed to: 

City of Cologne  
Attn: City Administrator   
1211 Village Parkway  
Cologne, MN  55322 

Any notice, demand, or other communication under this Agreement to Recipient shall be given 
by registered or certified mail, posted prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally 
to Recipient at the address above.  

Any notice, demand, or other communication under this Agreement to Subrecipient shall be 
given by registered or certified mail, posted prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered 
personally to Subrecipient at the address below.   

STARS Early Learning Academy 
Attn:       
300 West Lake Street 
Cologne, MN 55387 

 

The provisions of this Section 16 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of 
this Agreement. 

17. WARRANTY OF LEGAL CAPACITY 

The individuals signing this Agreement on behalf of Recipient and on behalf of Subrecipient 
represent and warrant on Recipient and Subrecipient’s behalf, respectively, that the individuals 
are duly authorized to execute this Agreement on Recipient and Subrecipient’s behalf, 
respectively, and that this Agreement constitutes Recipient and Subrecipient’s valid, binding, 
and enforceable agreements.  The provisions of this Section 17 shall survive the expiration, 
cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

18. WARRANTY OF FUNDS 

Subrecipient warrants that it has sufficient funds to complete the purposes of the Project and 
sufficient capacity to administer the Project.  The provisions of this Section 18 shall survive 
the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 



8 
 

19. NO AGENCY, PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE 

This Agreement does not create any partnership, joint venture, association, employment, or 
principal and agent relationship between Recipient and Subrecipient. 

20. DAMAGES 

In the event of a default of this Agreement by Recipient, Subrecipient shall not be entitled to 
recover punitive, special, or consequential damages or damages for loss of business.  The 
provisions of this Section 20 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this 
Agreement. 

21. GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be controlled by the laws of the State of Minnesota.  The provisions of 
this Section 21 shall survive the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

22. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion hereof is, for any reason, held 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such decision shall not affect the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 22 shall survive the 
expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

The recitals, Exhibit A, Exhibit B, and Exhibit C are specifically incorporated into and made 
a part of this Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof, as well as any previous 
agreements presently in effect between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  Any 
alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by authorized representatives the parties, 
unless otherwise specifically provided herein.  The provisions of this Section 23 shall survive 
the expiration, cancelation, or termination of this Agreement. 

24. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and all such executed counterparts 
shall constitute the same Agreement.  Signatures transmitted by fax, email, or other electronic 
means (e.g., pdf format) are binding, delivered, and enforceable. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 

  



9 
 

RECIPIENT EXECUTION 

Recipient, having signed this Agreement, and pursuant to such approval and the proper officials 
of Recipient having signed this Agreement, agrees to be bound by the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

Date:     , 2022   CITY OF COLOGNE  
 
 
      
Matt Lien, Mayor 
 
 
      
Jesse Dickson, City Administrator 

 
 
 
 

  



10 
 

SUBRECIPIENT EXECUTION 
 
 Subrecipient, having signed this Agreement, and pursuant to such approval and the proper 
officials of Subrecipient having signed this Agreement, agrees to be bound by the provisions of 
this Agreement. 
 
 
Date:                                                    , 2022                         STARS Early Learning Academy 

 
 
 

 
  
By: 
 
Its: 
 
  
By: 
 
Its: 
 
 
  
By:  
 
Its: 
 
 
  
By: 
 
Its: 



Exhibit A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROJECT PLANS 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Exhibit A-2 
 



Exhibit A-3 
 



Exhibit A-4 
 



Exhibit A-5 
 



Exhibit A-6 
 



Exhibit A-7 
 

 
 
 



Exhibit B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
COMMUNITY GROWTH PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVE GRANT PROGRAM 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
AND THE CITY OF COLOGNE  

 



Exhibit B-2 



Exhibit B-3 



Exhibit B-4 



Exhibit B-5 



Exhibit B-6 

 
 



Exhibit C 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CARVER COUNTY CDA  
CGPI COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT  

REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 











 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF COLOGNE 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-08 

APPROVING ADVERTISEMENT FOR 2022 
SEASONAL PUBLIC WORKS HELP 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cologne budgets for summer mowing/public works help; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff recommends advertisement to have help available as soon as possible; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cologne, 
Minnesota, to authorize City staff to advertise for two (2) seasonal mowing/public works positions 
for summer 2022. 
 
 Adopted by the City Council of the City of Cologne, Minnesota, this 4th day of April, 2022. 
 
 

   _________________________________ 
      Matt Lein, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Michelle Morrison 
City Clerk 
 
M/            Lein    Szaroletta        
   Bruss      Lenzen       
S/            Kells                    


